
 

 

August 28, 2012 

 

Via Secure E-mail 

David J. Campbell 

General Counsel 

Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. 

1330 Avenue of the Americas, 38th Floor 

New York, NY 10019 

 

Re: Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. 

Confidential Draft Amendment No.2 to Registration Statement on Form S-1 

Submitted August 14, 2012 

  CIK No. 0001549966 

 

Dear Mr. Campbell: 

 

We have reviewed your amended confidential draft registration statement and have the 

following comments.   

 

Our Company, page 1 

 

1. We note your response and revised disclosure in response to comment 3 in our letter 

dated July 31, 2012.  Your disclosure, however, does not quantify the growth in assets 

under management attributable to market appreciation of these assets or the growth 

attributable to acquisition of new client assets.  Please revise your disclosure accordingly.  

In this regard we note that you provide segregated market appreciation and net client cash 

flows data for the last two fiscal years and the March 31, 2012 period (refer to disclosure 

on page 75).   

 

 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, page 

69 

 

Operating Results, page 74 

 

2. We note from your response to comment 15 in our letter dated July 31, 2012 that you 

continue to disagree that the separate presentation of a rollforward of discretionary AUM 

and of non-discretionary AUM is useful information.  Further, you believe that the 

separate presentations would distract an investor from material information and the 

overall picture of your business and operations.  As previously noted, it remains unclear 

how you arrived at this conclusion.  Please provide us with a substantive explanation as 

to why additional information regarding the assets that you manage along with 

appropriate explanatory disclosure is not informative.  In this regard, we note that your 
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discussion of your company in the prospectus focuses on the amount of asset under 

management, the rate your assets under management has grown, the composition of your 

assets under management, and the performance of your assets under management at the 

composite level.  Further, your growth strategy for your company is also focused on 

growing your assets under management.  Finally, it is not until page 10 of the Prospectus 

that there is any disclosure of your revenues, profits, or assets.  Therefore, AUM appears 

to be central to your business and operations.  Since revenues for discretionary AUM is 

recognized as a percentage of AUM depending on the specific contract terms, it would 

appear useful information for an investor to better understand the specific changes in the 

rollforward of discretionary AUM for each period presented to then understand the 

corresponding portion of the change in revenues recognized.  As such absent a more 

complete and substantive explanation as to why the separate presentations with 

appropriate explanatory disclosures would be confusing to investors, we continue to 

request that you provide a rollforward of your AUM for your discretionary assets, non-

discretionary assets, and in total for each period presented.   

 

3. We note that in response to comment 16 in our letter dated July 31, 2012, you disclosed 

the amount of separately managed accounts and private funds as of March 31, 2012.  As 

previously requested, please provide this disclosure for all periods presented.  Please also 

disclose the average AUM for each period presented for your separately managed 

accounts and private funds and the amount of fees recognized for your separately 

managed accounts and private funds for each period presented in light of the disparity in 

the percentage of discretionary AUM and the percentage of management and advisory 

fees recognized. 

 

4. We note your disclosure that you earn higher fees from investments of the separately 

managed accounts in equity securities as compared to fixed income securities and 

municipal value securities.  As such, please disclose AUM as of the end of each period 

presented and disclose average AUM for each period presented by managed equity 

investments, managed fixed income investments, and municipal value strategy 

investments.     

 

5. We note the revisions to the rollforward of AUM in response to the second bullet of 

comment 18 in our letter dated July 31, 2012.  As previously requested in comment 47 in 

our letter dated June 8, 2012, please present existing client new investment funds and 

existing client withdrawals on a gross basis for each period presented.  In this regard, the 

movement of existing client funds between investments should have a net zero impact on 

AUM.  Therefore, is not relevant to a rollforward of AUM on a consolidated basis. 

 

6. As previously requested, please provide a discussion and analysis of the specific factors 

contributing to the rate of return (i.e., market appreciation) recognized during each period 

presented.  For fiscal year 2011, please explain why your assets under management 

generated a net market appreciation of $0.0 billion, especially in light of the information 

provided in the Business section that shows positive rates of returns for the majority of 
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your composites.  In this regard, please describe the underlying types of investments and 

overall strategies that are materially impacting the gross market performance.  To the 

extent necessary to provide investors with a sufficient understanding of the performance 

of the AUM you manage for each period presented, please also discuss the specific 

underlying assets and how the inherit risks of those assets impacted the market 

movements.  Refer to Item 303(a)(3)(i) of Regulation S-K, Instruction 1 of Item 303(a) of 

Regulation S-K, and Section 501.12 of the Financial Reporting Codification for guidance. 

 

7. Please quantify the impact of the following factors noted as contributing to the changes in 

total revenue recognized during the periods presented: 

 The increase in the average fee rate, which you note is due to the increase in the 

concentration of equity invested assets (i.e., the change in the mix of AUM). 

 The impact of the overall increase in discretionary AUM versus non-discretionary 

AUM. 

 The change in the mix of private funds between proprietary funds managed and sub-

advised funds managed.  In this regard, we note that you earn significantly higher fees 

from the sub-advised funds as compared to the proprietary funds managed and from 

separately managed accounts. 

Please refer to Item 303(a)(3) of Regulation S-K and Section 501.12.b. of the Financial 

Reporting Codification for guidance. 

 

8. Please provide a discussion and analysis of the material factors impacting the change in 

AUM during fiscal year 2009. 

 

Liquidity and Capital Resources, page 80 

 

9. We note the additional disclosures you provided in response to comment 21 in our letter 

dated July 31, 2012.  Please expand your disclosures to explain to investors the 

anticipated timing of the tax receivable agreement payments (e.g., payments will be made 

two months after you file an income tax return in which the tax benefits that are part of 

the agreement are utilized).  If the timing is currently unknown, please disclose this fact 

and confirm to us that once the timing is known, you will provide the disclosure. 

 

Index to Financial Statements, page F-1 

 

10. Please include updated financial statements and corresponding financial information in 

the Form S-1 for Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. and Silvercrest L.P.  Refer to 

Item 11(e) of Form S-1 and Article 3-12(b) of Regulation S-X for guidance. 
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You may contact Tracey Smith, Staff Accountant, at (202) 551-3736 or Terence O’Brien, 

Accounting Branch Chief, at (202) 551-3355 if you have questions regarding comments on the 

financial statements and related matters.  Please contact Era Anagnosti, Staff Attorney, at (202) 

551-3369 or Craig Slivka, Special Counsel, at (202) 551-3729 with any other questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

  

 /s/ Pamela Long 

  

Pamela Long 

Assistant Director 

 

 

cc:  Christina E. Melendi, Esq. (Via E-mail) 

       Bingham McCutchen LLP 

 

 


